
AGENDA 
SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

July 9, 2025 
 

1.  Call to Order 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Approval of Minutes of June 11, 2025 
4.  Correspondence 
5.  Public Comments, Audience Members are allowed 3 minutes to discuss items not on 

the Agenda (5 minutes for groups) 
6.  Approval of Agenda 

 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS        

A) Affordable Housing Updates  
B) Short Term Rental Updates 

a. Granicus 
b. Inspections 
c. Prosecutions 

C)   
D)  

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

A) Resolution 25-17 to Introduce Ord 169 STR Amendment 
B) Resolution 25-18 Metro Permit Approved Crown Castle 
C) Approve Bid for Cider Ct. Paving 
D) Approve Insurance Bid 
E)  
 

9. REPORTS 
Airport 
Building/Electrical/Mechanical 
Building Committee  
Fire/Ambulance 
Library 
Park Committee  
Planning Commission 
Roads 
Senior Services 
Water/Sewer Authority 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

10. TREASURER’S REPORT 

11. BOARD COMMENTS  

12. ADJOURNMENT  

 



SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

   MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 11, 2025 

 

Present:  Stein, Fisher, Bertorelli, Poole, DeGrandchamp, Lewandowski, and 

Wiatrowski  

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Stein at 7:30 p.m.  

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve the Minutes of 

the May 14, 2025 Regular Meeting as presented.  All voted in favor.  Motion 

carried. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve the Minutes of 

the May 27, 2025 Special Meeting as presented.  All voted in favor.  Motion 

carried. 

Correspondence from Todd Oliver was presented. 

Interim Chief Adam DeBoer from SHPD was in attendance and gave a report.   

Gail Gladney from Van Buren County Commission left information before the 

meeting but left ill.  

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Fisher, to approve the Agenda.  All voted in 

favor.  Motion carried. 

Supervisor Stein presented a MSHDA report on Employer Assisted Housing Fund.  

He also attended a meeting with a developer wanting to do a project.  Dave 

Wiatrowski reported that 8 Short Term Rentals had already been inspected. 

Chief Brandon Hinz from SHAES gave a presentation of the history, future and 

current needs of SHAES.  There is a need for additional staffing and there will be 

an additional expense for this. 

Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Fisher, to retire outdated policies and approve 

updated.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

 Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Poole, to approve appointing Maureen 

Lewandowski to the Election Commission.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Wiatrowski, to adopt Resolution 25-16 

Amending the Budget.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Reports from various committees and authorities were received. W.C. Askew was 

in attendance for the Road Commission, Jean Stein reported for the Library. 

Motion by Fisher, supported by Wiatrowski, to approve payment of anticipated 

bills in the amount of $80,345.01.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion 

carried. 

 



Motion by Fisher, supported by Wiatrowski, to move our current CD to Sturgis 

where the interest rate is better.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 

 

_________________________               ___________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk                           Ross Stein, Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

RESOLUTION NO. 25 - 17 

 

RESOLUTION TO INTRODUCE  

AN ORDINANCE #169 TO AMEND SHORT TERM RENTAL REGULATIONS IN 

SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

 

At a meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of South Haven 

("Township"), Van Buren County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall in said Township on the 

9th day of July, 2025 at 7:30 p.m. 

PRESENT:             

            

ABSENT:                   

                       

 The following Resolution was offered by ________________________________ and 

seconded by ________________________________. 

WHEREAS, the Township has previously adopted an ordinance regulating short term 

rentals in the Township, Short Term Rental Regulations Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Township desires to adopt An Ordinance to Amend Short Term Rental 

Regulations in South Haven Charter Township, Michigan (the “Ordinance”) to exempt properties 

in the Community Service Commercial zoning district from the one rental per calendar week 

limitation; and 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Michigan Charter Township Act, Act 359 of 1947, MCL 

42.1 et seq, as amended (“Act”) requires each proposed ordinance be introduced in written or 

printed form, identified by a number and short title and, following introduction of the proposed 

ordinance, requires the Clerk to publish the proposed ordinance as provided in the Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven, 

resolves as follows: 

1. The Township hereby introduces Ordinance No.169, An Ordinance to Amend Short 

Term Rental Regulations in South Haven Charter Township, Michigan, attached as Exhibit A.   

2. The Township Board will consider adopting the Ordinance at a meeting on August 

13th, 2025, at 7:30 p.m. 

3. Pursuant to Section 20 of the Act, the Clerk is directed to publish the Ordinance in 

accordance with Section 8 of the Act by posting the Ordinance in the office of the Clerk and on 

the Township’s web site.  The Clerk is further directed to publish notice of posting in a form 



substantially conforming to that attached as Exhibit B to this resolution describing the purpose of 

the Ordinance and that the Ordinance is posted in the office of the Clerk, on the Township’s web 

site and in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township within seven (7) days of the posting.   

4. A copy of the Ordinance shall be available for examination at the office of the Clerk 

and copies may be provided for a reasonable charge.   

5. Any and all resolutions that are in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed 

to the extent necessary to give this Resolution full force and effect. 

 

YEAS:  ____________________________ 

NAYS:  ____________________________  

 

 

THE RESOLUTION WAS DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss.  

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN ) 

 

  

I, Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk of the Charter Township of South Haven, hereby certify this 

to be a true and complete copy of Resolution No.25-17, duly adopted at a meeting of the Township 

Board held on the 9th day of July, 2025 at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

              

       Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk  

  



 

EXHIBIT A  
 

 

SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP VAN BUREN COUNTY 

SHORT TERM RENTAL ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE #169 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SHORT TERM RENTAL REGULATIONS IN SOUTH 

HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN. 

South Haven Charter Township ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Amendment to Section 01-02(d). 

Section 01-02(d) of the Township’s Short Term Rental Regulations Ordinance is hereby amended 

to exempt rentals in the Community Service Commercial zoning district from the one rental per 

calendar week requirement. The section shall read, in its entirety, as follows: 

Sec. 01-02. Definitions. 

(a) Short-Term Rental. The Rental or subletting of a Single-Family Dwelling for 

compensation for a term of at least three but not more than 27 nights (rentals for less 

than three nights are not allowed as Short-Term Rentals). Except in the Community 

Service Commercial District, only one Rental term may begin for a Single-Family 

Dwelling during any calendar week of Sunday through Saturday. However, the rental 

of the following shall not be considered Short-Term Rentals: bed and breakfast 

establishments, motels, resorts, campgrounds, transitional houses operated by a 

charitable organization, group homes such as nursing homes and adult-foster-care 

homes, substance-abuse rehabilitation clinics, mental-health facilities, other similar 

healthcare related facilities, and the Rental of Single-Family Dwellings in the 

Agricultural District. 

Section 2. Effective date. 

This Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township Board of the Township of South 

Haven, Van Buren County, Michigan, on __________________. This Ordinance shall be effective 

immediately after publication of its contents or a summary of its contents in a local newspaper of 

general circulation in the Township. 

Section 3. Severability. 

The provisions of this ordinance are severable. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared void or 

unenforceable for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Ordinance 

will remain in full force and effect.  

 

Section 4. Repealer. 

All other ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of the Ordinance are hereby repealed to the 

extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

 

   

Ross Stein, Township Supervisor  Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk 
 

 

  



 

 

 

EXHIBIT B  
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

 

NOTICE OF POSTING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 169 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND RENTAL REGULATIONS IN SOUTH HAVEN 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at its meeting on July 9, 2025, the Township Board received a 

proposed ordinance entitled “An Ordinance to Amend Short Term Rental Regulations in South 

Haven Charter Township, Michigan,” which will be considered for adoption on August 13, 2025, 

at 7:30 p.m., at a meeting of the Township Board at the Township Hall, 09761 Blue Star Memorial 

Hwy, South Haven, MI 49090.  The proposed ordinance would, amend the Township’s Short Term 

Rental Ordinance to exempt properties in the Community Service Commercial zoning district from 

the one rental per calendar week limitation 

 

The proposed ordinance is available in its entirety for public inspection.  The proposed ordinance 

is posted at the office of the Township Clerk, 09761 Blue Star Memorial Hwy, South Haven, MI 

49090 and on the website of the Charter Township of South Haven, 

http://www.southhaventwp.com.   
 

 

 Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk 

 South Haven Township Hall 

 09761 Blue Star Memorial Hwy 

 South Haven, MI 49090 

 (269) 637-3305 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 
VAN BUREN COUNTY 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE CROWN CASTLE LLC’S 

METRO ACT PERMIT 

At a meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven, Van Buren 
County, State of Michigan, on the _______ day of July, 2025 at ______ p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT:  

ABSENT: 

The following resolution was offered by and supported 
by  . 

The Charter Township of South Haven hereby resolves: 

WHEREAS, Crown Castle F i b e r  LLC (“Crown Castle”) desires to construct a 
part of its telecommunications facilities, specifically fiber optic telecommunications, within 
the Charter Township of South Haven’s (“Township”) right-of-ways; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Metropolitan Extension Telecommunications Rights-of- Way 
Oversight Act, Public Act 48 of 2002 (“METRO Act”), a provider using or seeking to use public 
right-of-ways for its facilities must obtain a permit from the Township; and 

WHEREAS, Crown Castle has submitted a completed application for a METRO Act 
permit for facilities it plans to construct and install in the Township’s right-of ways; and 

WHEREAS, Crown Castle has chosen to utilize the MPSC Approved Bilateral Permit 
Form, which provides a fifteen (15) year term, with three (3) subsequent five (5) year renewal 
terms. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven, Van 
Buren County, resolves as follows: 

1. The Township resolves to approve Crown Castle’s METRO Act bilateral permit in the
form attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution, and such approval is subject to all terms and
conditions set forth in the Permit, the Township Code of Ordinances, and this Resolution.

2. The approval is conditioned upon Crown Castle obtaining the necessary construction or
engineering permits from any state, county, village or township agency, including but not limited
to the Road Commission for Van Buren County; naming and maintaining the Charter Township
of South Haven as an additional insured on all insurance policies and keeping the Township
updated with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage related to any project ongoing or
arising from this Permit; updating the permit to include Crown Castle’s name in line one of the



permit, and providing a bond prior to construction in any public rights of way as required by the 
METRO Act, as amended, and in accordance with the Township Code of Ordinances. 

3. The approval only extends to telecommunication facilities as defined by the METRO ACT, 
and does not extend to other equipment or structures, including Distributed Antenna Systems 
(DAS) antennas, equipment, and supporting poles that may be contemplated by Crown Castle. 

4. The Township Board authorizes the Township Supervisor to execute the MPSC Approved 
Bilateral Permit in the form attached as Exhibit A on behalf of the Township and directs the Clerk 
to send the executed Permit to Crown Castle. 

5. The Township resolves that the Clerk shall notify the METRO Authority of the Township's 
approval of the MPSC Approved Bilateral Permit Form, including the date it was approved. 

6. All actions by the Township inconsistent with this Resolution are hereby rescinded to the 
extent necessary to give this Resolution full force and effect. 

YEAS:   
 

NAYS:   
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) ss 
COUNTY OF VAN BUREN ) 

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of South 

Haven, County of Van Buren, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 
complete copy of certain proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a 
meeting held on the ________ day of July, 2025. 

 
 
Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk 
Charter Township of South Haven, County of Van Buren 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 



































Lea
din

g t
he 

Wa
y f

or 
Mi

chi
gan

!      

South Haven Charter Township, 
Van Buren County

Effective Date:  8/1/2025

Presented by:

Megan West

(269) 341-9715

mwest@acrisure.com 

Public Entity Insurance
Proposal for:

PROPOSAL OF 
COVERAGES



We specialize in Michigan public entities and understands your unique coverage needs. We are 
your single source for Group Benefits, Property & Liability, and Group/ Individual Retirement 
Planning. In addition to comprehensive coverages, we provide risk management services, 
employee education, onsite reviews, online enrollment, 24/& access to each employee’s benefits 
information, and much more. 

Our Property & Casualty team has over 54 years of experience in 
the Public Entity Insurance Business. Friendly and professional 
service for all your insurance needs.  Below are the coverage 
opportunities our team has to offer. 

Par Plan/ Open Property & Casualty CFC Cyber Insurance 

Broad coverage, competitive pricing, over 
1300 Michigan entities with 96% retention. 

Cybercrime, network security privacy, 
liability, system damage, business 
interruption and phishing scams. 

Workers Compensation 
Provident:  

Insurance For Emergency Services 

Wage loss, medical treatment, rehab, death 
benefit and much more. Since 1912 Michigan 
based. 

24/7 AD&D insurance, line of duty, 
occupational coverage and a first responder 
assistance program. 

Additional information on any of these programs is available upon your request! 

YOUR PROPERTY & CASUALTY TEAM 

Jon Johnson 

Ext 3163 

Account Manager 
jojohnson@acrisure.com 

Megan West 

Ext 3178 

Account Manager 
mwest@acrisure.com

Bobbi Pritchard 

Ext 3111 

Department Manager 
rpritchard@acrisure.com 

Kate Thomas 

Ext 3122 

Service Representative 
kvthomas@acrisure.com

HOW ACRISURE SERVES YOU 



MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP PARTICIPATING PLAN 
• The Michigan Township Participating Plan was formed in 1985.

• The Par Plan develops coverage programs specific to every member’s needs.

• The Par Plan is a unique and proven, member-driven system that has effectively
provided affordable, tailored property and casualty coverage to Michigan public entities
for many years.

• The Par Plan is a proven, historically stable program with nearly 900 Michigan
Townships and a 98% member retention rate and a strong, long-term working
relationship with its program reinsurers.

• Over 1,300 current members already know why The Par Plan is #1 in Michigan.

• Par Plan was structured to provide more features and benefits than any other plan:

• Non-profit Tax-exempt • Simplified application
• Retain investment income • Specialized loss control
• Stable pricing • Homogenous group
• Interactive website

MTPP RISK REDUCTION GRANT PROGRAM 
The Michigan Township Participating Plan (Par Plan) established the  
Risk Reduction Grant Program in 2011 to continue providing its members  
a concentration of expert services in the public arena. This program further 
allows the Par Plan to partner with members and foster cooperation in an effective risk 
management and loss control program. 

To the extent that funds are available, the Risk Reduction Grant Program has been 
established to assist members in reducing specific risk exposures and to assist our 
members in their efforts of applying effective risk management and loss control 
techniques for exposures the Par Plan insures. 

GRANT QUALIFICATIONS
The applicant must be a member of the Michigan Township Participating Plan. The 
longevity of membership will be a factor considered in the approval and the amount of 
grant that is issued. Since risk management and grants usually result in cost savings in 
future years, members with long continuous membership will be given priority. 

First year Par Plan members are not eligible for funding. 



GRANT SELECTION PROCESS 
The proposed grant request must present an approach which may provide a unique and 
innovative solution in order to assist our member in their efforts of applying effective risk 
management and loss control techniques covered by the Par Plan program. 

The impact of the grant request must be identifiable and measurable. The grant must 
have a positive benefit to cost ratio; the project should demonstrate a measurable and 
realistic outcome to an exposure(s) and must not duplicate similar efforts already 
undertaken by the member. The budget for the grant request must be realistic and 
accompanied by supporting data. 

The plan of action must have a high probability of assisting or reducing the exposure(s). 
Statistics or other available data demonstrating the severity or extent of the exposure(s) 
being addressed will enhance the possibility of receiving the grant. 

APPLICATION & SUBMISSION  
To obtain an application visit the Michigan Township Par Plan’s website at 
www.theParPlan.com 

GRANT WINNING EXAMPLES 
• Firefighter Training of Emergency
Vehicle Operations 

• Well House Video Surveillance

• Police Department In-Car Cameras • Fire & Rescue Training Structure

• Fire Vehicle Backup Cameras • EMS Power Cot

• Video Surveillance Systems • Township Hall Emergency Lighting &
Exit Signs

• Baseball Diamond Fence Guards • Employee Training or Education

• Ambulance Front Bumper Guard • Park Bleachers

• Park Bulletin Board • Cemetery Signage

• Park/Playground Fall Material or
resurfacing 

• Chevron Striping on Emergency
Vehicles

• Police Department Taser Training • Media Storage / Server for Police Patrol
Recordings 

• Smoke Detector with Direct Dial in
Township Hall 



TMHCC  
RISK CONTROL SERVICE & CLAIMS 

RISK CONTROL SERVICES 
Provides customized loss control to a variety of Municipal Governments, including 
Cities, Counties, Towns, Townships and Villages. We also work closely with the 
different branches within these entities:  

• Police & Fire Departments • Public Works

• Parks & Recreation Programs • Human Resources Departments

Our main objective is to assist Municipalities in reducing and/or transferring potential 
liability exposures. To help our members deal with these, we offer several types of risk 
control services: 

• Risk Control site visits and subsequent report with recommendations for improvement
• Special event and hold harmless language reviews
• Resource materials
• Technical assistance
• Free Risk Control workshops and conferences

These services are provided by experienced risk control personnel who utilize proven 
risk control techniques and procedures.  These techniques and procedures are 
continuously updated by conferring with TMHCC appointed counsel and HCC Public 
Risk Claim Service, Inc.*  TMHCC Risk Control Department Representatives are 
available to provide risk control advice and guidance at no additional cost to TMHCC 
insureds to help them avoid, reduce and/or transfer potential liability exposures.   

If you have any questions in regards to any of the risk control services that are provided, 
please contact your local TMHCC Risk Control Representative or the TMHCC Risk 
Control Department.   

* HCC Public Risk Claim Service, Inc.is a subsidiary of TMHCC and is the claims administrator for the
TMHCC program.  Information regarding TMHCC and appointed counsel is on their web page at
www.tmhcc.com.



Set your home page to www.tmhcc.com to visit The TMHCC web site, 
available to you 24 hours each day, 7 days each week.   

Visit the site to learn about upcoming events such as annual conventions, 
important meetings and helpful workshops; learn about the board 
members who represent you; find contact information for all of the 
municipal coverage professionals who are eager to serve your needs.  

TMHCC maintains some of the highest financial ratings available within the insurance 
industry: 

AA- 
by Standard & Poor's 

AA- 
by Fitch Ratings 

A+ 
by A.M. Best Company



Acrisure 
Customer Service 

315 S. Kalamazoo Mall 
Kalamazoo, MI 49007 

888.748.7966 

Michigan Township Participating Plan 
1700 Opdyke Court 

Auburn Hills, Michigan 48326 
248- 371-3100

AccidentFund 
200 N. Grand Avenue 

PO Box 40790 
Lansing, MI 48901-7990 

866-206-5851 

TMHCC
Risk Control Administration 

1700 Opdyke Court 
Auburn Hills, Michigan 48326 

800.878.9878 

HCC Public Risk Claim Service, Inc. 
Claims Administration 
1700 Opdyke Court 

Auburn Hills, Michigan 48326 
800.878.9878 

24 Hour Telephone: 800.225.6561 
publicriskclaims@tmhcc.com 

CFC Underwriting Limited  
85 Gracechurch Street  

London EC3V 0AA  
United Kingdom 

Service Providers 



We promise. 
 We will promptly respond to your phone calls and emails.

 We will expedite any changes in coverage.

 We have staff on-site with expertise in the following areas:

o Property & Casualty

o Workers’ Compensation

o Bonds

 We will happily review your coverage at any time. We recommend review on an annual

basis.

 We have the ability to review contracts or certificates you receive from other entities.

 We are willing and able to meet with you and your team to fully review coverage.

You Serve Others. We Serve You.

Our Service Promise 



MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP PARTICIPATING PLAN 

Quote for:  SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

Quote Date: 16 June 2025 
Quote for: SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP - VAN BUREN 
Policy Term: 08/01/2025 - 08/01/2026 
Payment Plan: Annual  
Company: U.S. Specialty Insurance Company (USSIC) 

The Michigan Township Participating Plan (MTPP)  
Policy #: M25MTP80982-06 

General Liability - Occurrence Form (USSIC)  
Subject to $2,000,000 per Occurrence / $0 Aggregate 
Subject to $0 Deductible  
Damage to Premises Rented to you $500,000 Subject to $0 Deductible  
Medical Payments $10,000 
Government Medical Included 
Cemetery Professional - No Coverage  
Pesticide or Herbicide - No Coverage      
General Liability Nose Coverage - No Coverage  
Employee Benefits  - Occurrence Form - Subject to $1,000,000 per Occurrence / $3,000,000 Aggregate 
Subject to $0 Deductible 
Employee Benefits Prior Acts Coverage - No Coverage 
Sewer Backup Liability - No Coverage  

Cyber Liability Coverage (MTPP) - No Coverage  

Liquor Liability (USSIC) - No Coverage  

Special Events:  Subject to receipt of Special Events Application, Risk Control review and Underwriting 
approval (Additional Premium may apply) 

Fireworks Liability:  Subject to receipt of Special Events Application, Risk Control review and Underwriting 
approval prior to binding coverage (Additional Premium will apply) 

Wrongful Acts Liability -  Occurrence Form (USSIC) 
Subject to $2,000,000 per Occurrence / $0 Aggregate 
Subject to $0 Deductible - Including Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense  
Please note: Wrongful Acts Deductible and Loss Adjustment Expenses Apply to EPLI. 
Prior Acts Coverage - No Coverage 
Non-Monetary Damage $25,000 Per Suit / $50,000 Per Policy Limit 
Private Property Use Restriction Sublimit $250,000 per Occurrence / $0 Aggregate 

Law Enforcement Liability (USSIC) - No Coverage  

Property (USSIC) 
Total Building and Contents Limit $3,488,746 
Coinsurance N/A 
Subject to: $1,000 Deductible 
Blanket Basis Included 
Agreed Amount Included 
Building Valuation–per schedule on file with company Replacement Cost 
Special Form Included 
Accounts Receivable $250,000 
Animal Mortality $10,000 any one occurrence 



MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP PARTICIPATING PLAN 

Quote for:  SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

Business Income $500,000 any one occurrence 
Extra Expense $500,000 any one occurrence 
Debris Removal 25% of direct physical loss or damage to covered property 
Electrical Utility Service Interruption $25,000 any one occurrence 
Fire Department Service Charge $5,000 for your liability 
Fire Equipment Recharge $5,000 for each separate 12 month period 
Foundations of Machinery $250,000 any one occurrence 
Golf Course Greens $100,000 any one occurrence 
Inventory or Appraisal $10,000 any one claim 
Newly Acquired or Constructed Prop – Bldg $1,000,000 for 180 days at each building 
Newly Acquired or Constructed Prop – Contents $250,000 at each building 
Outdoor Property – Specifically Listed Items $10,000 any one occurrence; Limited Perils 
Outdoor Property – All Other Items $5,000 any one occurrence; Limited Perils 
Personal Effects – Property of Others $1,000 for personal property of any one employee or 

volunteer 
$50,000 any one occurrence 
$15,000 any one occurrence for property of others 

Property in Transit $50,000 any one occurrence 
Property off Premises $100,000 any one occurrence 
Underground Pipes, Flues or Drains $1,000,000 
Valuable Papers & Records – Cost to Research $250,000 any one occurrence 
Building Ordinance or Law $250,000 Undamaged Portion / or Demolition 

10% of reported values (Increased cost of construction) 
Earthquake Coverage $1,000,000 subject to $50,000 Deductible  
Flood Coverage $100,000 subject to $10,000 Deductible  

(Any location in the following flood zones is excluded: Flood Zones A, AO, AH, A1 - A30, A99, V, V1-V30.  Any area 
later designated by FEMA as a "special flood coverage area" at the time of a Covered Cause of Loss is also subject 
to this limitation.  Any area removed by FEMA from a "special flood coverage area" designed at the time of a 
Covered Cause of Loss is not subject to this limitation.) 
Equipment & Mechanical Breakdown Included 

Subject to: $1,000 Deductible  
Law and Ordinance Limit $250,000 

Automobile (USSIC) 
Based on 0 vehicles - Schedule on file with Company 
Subject to $2,000,000 Liability Limit 
Subject to $0 Deductible  
Hired and Non Owned Automobile Liability 
Personal Injury Protection - No Coverage  
Property Protection Insurance - Included 
Mini-Tort Liability - Included 
Physical Damage per schedule on file with company 
Comprehensive Deductible:  $0 
Collision Deductible:  $0 
Hired Auto Physical Damage - No Coverage 
Employee Vehicle Endorsement 
Nose Coverage - No Coverage 
Auto Catastrophic Coverage - No Coverage 
Garage Keepers Legal - No Coverage 
Impound Vehicles Coverage - No Coverage 



MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP PARTICIPATING PLAN 

Quote for:  SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

Inland Marine (USSIC) 
Subject to $1,000 Deductible 
Scheduled Equipment – Per Schedule on file with company $27,500 

Valuation: Replacement Cost Valuation - per schedule on file 
Misc. Property & Equipment $6,000 

Valuation: Replacement Cost 
Ancillary Equipment (Fire Department) No Coverage 

Valuation: Replacement Cost 
Contractors Equipment Rented from Others $0 
less than 90 days 
Aircraft Non-Operating Shell No Coverage 
Total Limit : $33,500 

EDP (USSIC) 
Total Limit $100,000 
Subject to $1,000 Deductible 
System Breakdown Coverage Included 
Loss of Business Income $100,000 
Extra Expense $100,000 
Media Coverage $100,000 

Crime (USSIC) 
Coverage Form B, C & F Subject to: $0 Deductible 

B. Forgery or Alteration $10,000 
C. Theft, Disappearance and Destruction In/Out $100,000 

Tax Time Limit No Coverage 
F. Computer Fraud $100,000 

Coverage Form O & P Subject to: $0 Deductible 
O. Employee Dishonesty – Per Loss $100,000 
P. Employee Dishonesty – Per Employee No Coverage 

Includes Faithful Performance 

Terrorism  INCLUDED 
USSIC Sub Total Premium:  $10,707.00 
MTPP Cyber Sub Total Premium : $.00 

Total Annual Package Premium:  $10,707.00 



MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP PARTICIPATING PLAN 

Quote for:  SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

**Note:  Terrorism can be Declined 
**Note: Optional quoted premiums are not included in installment plan premiums. 
**Note: Mold, Fungi & Bacterial Exclusion Included 
**Note: Perfluorinated Compounds (PFC)/Per-and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Total Exclusion Included 
**Note: Accounts cannot be brokered 
**Note: All SIR’s Include Loss, Loss Adjustment Expense and Supplementary Payments 
**Note: Failure of any Dam, Levee or Dike Exclusion Included 

Limited Terrorism coverage and pricing subject to the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act as reauthorized in 2019. 

TRIA DOES NOT APPLY TO AUTO LIABILITY, AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE, CRIME, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS WRONGFUL ACTS LIABILITY OR LAW ENFORCEMENT 

Please Note:  TRIA Premium is included in the above package premium 

You selected $0 PIP medical coverage for the expiring policy period.  Therefore, we have included a quotation 
with that same amount of PIP medical coverage for the renewal period.  Your signed PIP selection form, if 
applicable, will remain in effect as long as you are insured by this company or until you change this selection 
by completing and signing a new selection form.  If you would like to change your selection of PIP medical 
coverage, or if you would like to know more about these coverage options available to you, please advise your 
agent. 

Special Conditions: 

NOTE:  The following forms need to be signed and returned prior to binding coverage: 
~ Application Declaration 
~ Terrorism Form 
~ Michigan Choice of Bodily Injury Liability Coverage Limits 
~ Michigan Selection of Personal Injury Protection (PIP) Medical Coverage 

As indicated herein, this quote remains valid until 08/01/2025 and cannot be amended or altered without express written 
consent of TMHCC. Also, please be aware that any required subjectivities must be received, reviewed, and approved, 
prior to binding this risk. 



Client Name: SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
Application #: 3392752070801
Michigan Township Participating Plan

Property Schedule Information
Loc.#
Bldg #

FacLoc #
Within 

50ft

Address
City, State, Zip,
County
Addl Description

Year Built
SQ Feet

Building
Contents

Remove from 
Blanket/Agreed

Valuation 
Prop

Boiler

POK
BF 

Code

BC
Sprinkler

Spec 
Ded

1
1

N/A
No

09761 BLUE STAR HWY (TWP 
HALL)
South Haven, MI 49090

1970
12,080

$3,424,680
$64,066

No R
R

10
100

4
No

N/A



Client Name: SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
Application #: 3392752070801
Michigan Township Participating Plan

Inland Marine Coverage

# Serial Number
Dept.

Year: Make:
Type:

Model:
Actual / Replacement: Limit: Spec 

Ded:
2

General Administrative
OPTECH VOTING  
Commercial Articles

MACHINE
R

$5,000 N/A

3
General Administrative

ACCUVOTE 
Commercial Articles

VOTING MACHINE
R

$7,500 N/A

4
General Administrative

OPTECH VOTING 
Commercial Articles

MACHINE
R

$5,000 N/A

5
General Administrative

CHAIN LINK FENCING 
Commercial Articles

@ LAKE
R

$10,000 N/A

Total Items: 4 Schedule Sub Total: $27,500

Miscellaneous Property and Equipment: $6,000

Ancillary Equipment (Fire Department): $0

Contractor's Equipment Rented From Others Limit: $0

Sub Total: $6,000

Total: $33,500



Client Name: SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
Application #: 3392752070801
Michigan Township Participating Plan

Canine Schedule

Name Tattoo: Description: Year Born: Value:
0 $0

Total Value: $0

Electronic Data Processing Coverage Information

EDP Coverage: Yes

EDP Deductible: OR SIR:

Deductible: Yes SIR: No
Amount:  $1,000 Amount:  $0

Aggregate Limit:  $0

Loss of Business Income Limit:  $100,000

Extra Expense:  $100,000

Media Coverage:  $100,000

System Breakdown: Yes

Electronic Data Processing Coverage Information

### Serial Number: Description: Coverage:
1. EDP BLANKET $100,000

Total Items: 1 Total Coverage: $100,000



Premium Summary 

South Haven Charter Township, Van Buren County 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

General Liability 

Employee Benefits Liability 

Wrongful Acts Liability  

Property 

Automobile  

Inland Marine 

EDP 

Crime

Terrorism  

Total MTPP Premium: $10,707.00 

Cyber Liability, Earth Movement and Flood Coverage Quotes are available upon your 
written request. 

**NOTICE 
This proposal is an overview of coverage and is merely descriptive and should be used for reference 
purposes only. Please refer to the coverage document for specific terms, conditions, and exclusions. Any 
questions should be referred to your independent insurance agent.

Included 



Additional Forms Required 

South Haven Charter Township, Van Buren County 

Additional forms to be signed and returned 

 Bind Request

 Policyholder Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage Form

*Please Note–if these forms are not returned, it will delay the issuance of your policy.*

Mail to: 

Please send payment to:
Acrisure Great Lakes Partners Insurance Services, LLC

315 South Kalamazoo Mall
Kalamazoo, MI 49007



 

 

            SOUTH HAVEN AREA REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY MINUTES 

 

JUNE 18, 2025 

 

Pursuant to Act 267 of 1976, as amended (Open Meetings Act), the Board Members of the 

South Haven Area Regional Airport Authority (SHARAA) met at the South Haven Area 

Regional Airport, 73020 C.R. 380, South Haven, Michigan on Wednesday, June 18, 2025. 

 

  _Brent Nichols_ Called a regular meeting of the South Haven Area Regional Airport 

Authority Board to order at 7:30 pm. 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Brent Nichols-Chair 

Jon Woodhams, Geneva Township, Vice Chair 

                                 Mary Hosley, City of South Haven 

                                 Jim Sankofski, Casco Township 

                                  Todd Jensen, South Haven Township 

          Mike Gillian, Covert Township 

                     Ross Woodhams, alternate for City of South Haven 

 

  
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

           Fred Bower, alternate for Covert Township  

           Julian Allen, Covert Township 

 

 

I. Agenda: __Jon Woodhams__ motioned to approve the agenda for the June 18, 2025, Airport 

Board Meeting. _Todd Jensen_ seconded this motion. All voted in favor. The motion to 

approve the agenda carries. YEA   6_ / NA _0_       

 

 

II.          Public Comments:   NONE 

 
 

          _ _Mary Hosley   motioned to approve the consent agenda, and  Jon Woodhams_     

            seconded this motion: 

 

Consent Agenda:  
Expenses from: 

▪ MAY 2025 Totaling:  $11,523.97 

 

▪ Manager’s report dated: June 18, 2025 

 

▪ Minutes of  MAY 21, 2024 

 

 

A roll call vote to approve the consent agenda was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries.  

YEA _6_ / NA __0_ 



 

 

             Julian Allen, Covert Township 

Jim Sankofski, Casco Township 

Fred Bower, alternate for Covert 

Township 

Nancy Kelley, Treasurer 

John Carlson, Secretary 

 

 

III.     Committee Reports: NONE 
 

IV.    Old Business:  Chairman Brent Nichols and Vice Chairman Jon Woodhams discussed 

potential next steps regarding the City of Bangor’s involvement. As Bangor remains a member 

of the South Haven Area Regional Airport Authority, Chairman Nichols will follow up with 

legal counsel to determine whether any formal communication has occurred with the Bangor 

City Council.  

 

Airport Manager John Carlson brought to the Board’s attention that the cost for the tethered Hot 

Air Balloon for the annual Fly-In has increased over the last few years. After discussion, it was 

determined that Assistant Manager Dan Sanborn will evaluate the contract for 2025 and ensure 

the cost hasn’t increased once more. If the cost has increased from $4,275.00, the discussion will 

continue and finalize at the July meeting.  

 
V. New Business: With the assistance of Engineering Consultants Mead & Hunt (via phone), 

Assistant Manager Dan Sanborn presented the design contract for professional engineering 

services regarding the Runway 5/23 Pavement Evaluation. Todd Jensen motioned to accept the 

contract for professional engineering services regarding the Runway 5/23 Pavement Evaluation 

with Mead & Hunt and subcontractor GeoTran, for the amount of $50,273.01. Brent Nichols 

seconded this motion. All voted in favor. The motion carries and the contract was executed.  

YEA _6_ / NA __0_ 

 

Assistant Manaager Dan Sanborn presented a proposal from Waste Recovery Systems for culvert 

cleaning for a culvert that runs under the maintenance building driveway. Van Buren County 

Road Commission recommended this culvert be cleaned out when they were on the property 

maintaining ditches. Mary Hosley made a motion to accept the proposal for culvert cleaning 

from Waste Recovery Systems for the amount of $2,530.00 with the understanding that Assistant 

Manager Dan Sanborn will review the proposal terms and ensure there are fail safes in place if 

the pipe is damaged from the cleaning. Todd Jensen seconded this motion. All voted in favor. 

The motion carries.  YEA _6_ / NA __0_ 

 

 

IV. Member Comments: Election of Board Officers-July meeting. 7/16/2025  

 

 

 _Todd Jensen_ moved to adjourn the meeting _Jon Woodhams_ seconded this motion. The 

meeting was adjourned at: _8:19pm__ 

 

SOUTH HAVEN AREA REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

Brent Nichols, Chairman 

Jon Woodhams, Geneva Township, Vice Chair 

Todd Jensen, South Haven Township 

Mary Hosley, City of South Haven 

Ross Woodhams, alternate for City of South Haven 

Mike Gillian, Covert Township 









MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF 
MUNICIPAL CLERKS 

ADA INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 
GUIDELINES 

 

Purpose: 
The ADA Infrastructure Grant Program is designed to help local municipal clerks improve 
accessibility at election precincts and/or early vote sites to ensure compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Local municipal clerks may apply for up to 
$10,000 in grant funds to support the installation or renovation of infrastructure that 
enhances accessibility. 

 

1. Eligibility 

To be eligible for this grant: 

• The applicant must be a local municipal clerk responsible for administering 
elections and a member of Michigan Association of Municipal Clerks (MAMC). 

• The jurisdiction must propose an ADA-related infrastructure improvement project 
that benefits one or more precinct or early vote sites. 

• The total grant amount for each jurisdiction cannot exceed $10,000, regardless of 
the number of precincts or early vote sites being served. 

• The project must adhere to ADA compliance standards. 
 

2. Funding Availability 

• Maximum grant amount: $10,000 total per jurisdiction (not per precinct). 

• Upfront grant disbursement: Funds can be awarded before the project begins. 
The jurisdiction will receive the full grant amount upon award. 

• Funds will be distributed in a lump sum. 
 

3. Application Requirements 

• Completed Application Form 



• Project Description: Detailed description of the ADA infrastructure improvements.  

• Total Estimated Project Cost: Breakdown of the requested grant amount. 

• Certification: Applicant adhered to the following and will maintain such records 
during the grant in accordance with Michigan Records Retention Schedules:  

o Followed local purchasing policies.  

o Two (2) quotes from contractors or vendors for the proposed work or 
products exceeding $5,000. Must indicate vendor preference in project 
description. 

o That the location being improved is going to remain a polling location for at 
least the next two general election cycles. 

• Project Timeline: Indicate when the work will begin and when it will be completed. 
Project must begin immediately after funds are received. 

 
4. Reporting Requirements 

• Proof of Project Completion: The jurisdiction must submit photo(s) proving the 
funds were used for the ADA improvements within 120 days of receiving the grant. 

o Photos must be named with municipality and project name 

o Example: AnnArborCity_ADARamp.jpg 

• The 120-day period for expenditure begins when the grant funds are disbursed, and 
the jurisdiction must demonstrate that the funds were spent within that period, even 
if the project itself takes longer to complete. 

 

5. Submission and Award Process 

• Submit the online grant application form.  

• Applications will be accepted until all grant funds are awarded.  

• Applicants will be notified via email of grant award.  
 

6. Contact Information 

For questions or assistance, contact: 
Dan Leaman, Grant Program Administrator 
Phone: 517.372.6262 
Email: info@michiganclerks.org  

 
 

mailto:info@michiganclerks.org


 

Van Buren Conservation District 
June 2025 Program Update 

                                 Submitted by Emilly Hickmott, Executive Director 
 
 
I hope you’ve found ways to stay cool in these high temps! As a reminder, all are invited to our Annual 
Meeting & Director Election. This year, the Liberty Hyde Bailey Museum will be hosting us on Wednesday, July 
23 at 5:30 PM (optional 5:00 PM tour). We will give out a couple of awards and celebrate conservation 
successes while enjoying a locally-sourced dinner. We encourage you to RSVP here: 
https://vanburencd.org/2025-annual-meeting/  
 
Thank you for your help the last several months in getting the word out about our Conservation Needs 
Assessment survey! We are now analyzing those survey results to help us set our top five priorities for the 
next five years. We anticipate having more to share about this in the coming months. Despite the official 
survey period closing, we want to hear from Van Buren County anytime. You can call us, email us, stop in, or 
fill out the survey anytime. Contact information is available at VanBurenCD.org/about and the survey can 
be found at VanBurenCD.org/input. We serve you best when we know what your needs are! Help us 
understand what’s unique about your smaller community within Van Buren County.  
 
Upcoming Events: 

● Independence Day | Friday, July 4 | office closed in observance 
● Recycling Lunch & Learns - two opportunities! RSVP encouraged 269-633-9314 

○ Tuesday, July 1 | 11:45 AM - 1:15 PM | Lions Park Pavillion - Mill Race Road, Bangor |  
○ Wednesday, July 2 | 11:45 AM - 1:15 PM | City of Gobles Park Pavillion - S State St., Gobles 
○ Open to all ages, get your recycling questions answered!  

● Recycling Power Hours - drop off your recycling at newly-improved stations and ask Kalli your 
recycling questions!  

○ Tuesday, July 8 | 1:30 PM - 4:30 PM | Bloomingdale Transfer Station - Rocky Road 
○ Friday, July 11 | 1:00 PM - 4:00 PM | Paw Paw Transfer Station - Red Arrow Hwy 
○ Saturday, July 12 | 10:00 AM - 1:00 PM | Arlington Transfer Station - 26th Ave., Bangor   

● VBCD Regular Board Meeting | Wednesday, July 23 | 10:00 AM | USDA Service Center - 1035 E Michigan 
Ave., Paw Paw 

● Van Buren Conservation District (VBCD) Annual Meeting & Director Election | Wednesday, July 23 | 
5:30 PM - 7:00 PM | Liberty Hyde Bailey Museum - 903 S Bailey Ave., South Haven | open to all, RSVP 
encouraged 269-657-4030 x5 

● Recycle Roundup Collection Event | Saturday, August 2 | 9:00 AM - 2:00 PM | 1199 8th Ave., South 
Haven | household hazardous waste, oil paints, foam, electronics, passenger & semi tires | open to all 
Van Buren County 

 
EGLE Seeking Municipal Input On Stormwater Management: The Michigan Department of Environment, 
Great Lakes, and Energy's (EGLE) is raising awareness on how the program can be used to finance 
stormwater infrastructure projects across the state. EGLE is also seeking to understand what stormwater 
infrastructure projects communities are prioritizing so we can best support these needs. Complete this 
survey if you represent a municipality, planning agency, watershed management agency, or drain 
commissioner: https://survey123.arcgis.com/share/4f006e4ddff3497bbc7e190ec23b5195?width=800  

1035 E. Michigan Avenue, Paw Paw, Michigan 49079 
269.657.4030 x5  ⬥  www.VanBurenCD.org ⬥ info@vanburencd.org 

https://vanburencd.org/2025-annual-meeting/
http://vanburencd.org/about
http://vanburencd.org/input
https://vanburencd.org/van-buren-county-recycling-collections/
https://survey123.arcgis.com/share/4f006e4ddff3497bbc7e190ec23b5195?width=800
http://www.vanburencd.org


 

Van Buren Conservation District 
June 2025 Program Update 

                                 Submitted by Emilly Hickmott, Executive Director 
 
 
Program Updates: 
 

● Ag Conservation/Water Quality Projects (Erin Fuller and Colleen Forestieri) - The Van Buren 
Conservation District Water Quality team was recently awarded a grant in partnership with Michigan 
State University. The Agricultural Resiliency Program (a partnership between the Plant Coalition, the 
Michigan Department of Agriculture and Rural Development, and MSU) addresses long-term 
agriculture challenges related to water and extreme weather. VBCD staff will recruit farms to place 
water quality monitoring stations at the edges of their fields. These stations will collect real-time 
water quality data to help researchers develop leading-edge tools to prevent nutrient loss and 
quantify socioeconomic benefits of conservation practices. 

● SWxSW Corner CISMA (Cooperative Invasive Species Management Area) Team (Abbie Bristol, Alex 
Florian, Jena Johnson) - May is the official start to the field season! The seasonal crew members 
have joined the team, and the Strike Team hit the ground running with hydrilla and spotted lanternfly 
surveys, preparing for pesticide applicator exams, and pulling invasive species. The team and 
volunteers pulled a total of 480 pounds of garlic mustard and Dame’s rocket! Once the Strike Team 
was equipped with the knowledge and resources to find high priority invasive species of Southwest 
Michigan, Abbie and Alex continued developing future strategies and projects for the CISMA Team. 

● Michigan Agriculture Environmental Assurance Program (MAEAP) (Kyle Mead) - Michigan 
Envirothon’s State competition went very well despite a risk of tornado the evening before 
competition day. Training on Regen Ag protocols has ended, and the technician is now working on 
scheduling visits for that work to get done. Verifications continued with the Michigan Department of 
Agriculture & Rural Development (MDARD) with more on the way in July. The Equipment Rental 
Program has been going well. The two technicians are communicating well to ensure renters get the 
equipment picked up and returned when they need and that it is in good shape between rentals. 

● National Association of Conservation Districts (NRCS) Technical Assistance (Lucas Hartman, 
Gabriel Francisco) - This month, Gabriel and Lucas were busy supporting the farmers of Van Buren 
County as the spring weather warmed up. From visiting forests after the powerful storms, to 
assessing pastures as the new spring growth takes hold, we saw a lot of the county this past month. 
We closed out this month with being notified that we received a small grant for our annual grazing 
day to the sum of $1000 from Farm Bureau. 

● Outreach (Jacob Diljak) - Events and summer programs kicked off! Recycling collections have 
started and we are promoting our year-round services. Stay up-to-date with recycling, events, 
resources, and more by subscribing to our newsletter on our website: VanBurenCD.org 

● Resource Recovery & Recycling (Kalli Marshall, Jacob Diljak) - In May, we officially started the 
collection season. We opened ten year-round tire recycling locations at the start of the month in 
partnership with our transfer stations. The month was full of planning for educational events and 
various outreach. Mid month we held the Hartford Passenger T& Semi Tire and Electronics (PSTE) 
collection event and took in lots of electronics and tires from the community. The month concluded 
with the onboarding into the Michigan Nextcycle Technical Assistance Program. 

1035 E. Michigan Avenue, Paw Paw, Michigan 49079 
269.657.4030 x5  ⬥  www.VanBurenCD.org ⬥ info@vanburencd.org 

http://www.vanburencd.org

	July Agenda
	June 2025 Minutes
	Resolution 25-17 to Introduce STR Revision 7-2025
	Resolution 25-18 for Crown Castle METRO Act Approval
	CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN
	VAN BUREN COUNTY
	STATE OF MICHIGAN
	PRESENT:   ABSENT:

	RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.
	STATE OF MICHIGAN )
	COUNTY OF VAN BUREN )

	EXHIBIT A

	Bid for Cider Ct.
	2025 MTPP Renewal Proposal South Haven, Van Buren
	6 JUN 2025 Airport Authority Meeting Minutes 
	MTS Report
	Treasurer's Report
	ADA_Infrastructure_Grant_Guidelines_final
	VBCD_June_2025_Programs_Report



